
 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE:  April 1, 2014 

TO:   Prospective Consultant(s)/Designer(s) 

FROM:  Wesley Brown, Central Atlanta Progress 

RE:  Downtown South Transit Station Area Enhancements Plan  
Request for Proposals (RFP) – Questions and Responses 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Information pertaining to the following questions has been requested in response to the above-
referenced Request for Proposals (RFP). Questions and responses follow below. 
 

The deadline for proposal submittals is Tuesday, April 15th at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Question 1: 
I was wondering if you could give me an idea of how the construction/installation/implementation costs 
fit into the overall budget for the project. I’m assuming they are part of the fee, but is there a percentage 
of the budget that is allocated to this? Or are those costs exclusive of the project budget?  

I would imagine it’s difficult to estimate the cost for implementation at this point prior to understanding 
the challenges and solutions for short-term projects. Maybe you could clarify. 

Answer 1: 
The budget for all six elements of the project’s scope of work – which includes the implementation of 
demonstration projects – is $100,000. No percentages have been assigned to any of the six project 
tasks, and the proposed budget values assigned to each task will be at the discretion of each the 
consultant firm or team. 

Question 2: 
Task 4: Concept Plan Development – Has CAP set a minimum number of sketches/drawings/renderings 
to be provided by the consultant? 

Answer 2: 
There is no minimum number of sketches/drawings/rendering; however, the consultant is expected to 
effectively communicate the design and design intentions to a wide variety of audiences. These may 
include but are not limited to: ARC staff, CAP staff, City of Atlanta staff, MARTA staff and citizens whom 
may not have any planning education or experience.  

Question 3: 
Task 5: Implementation – Can CAP qualify what types of efforts “support” may include (or may not 
include) regarding installation of immediate project elements? For example, could A/E bid or 
construction documents be considered necessary? 



 

Answer 3: 
The current Downtown South Transit Station Area Enhancement Plan RFP does not include any A/E 
bidding support or construction document support from the selected contractor. Additional services 
will be contracted on an as-needed basis. 

Question 4: 
What is the selected team responsible for in terms of implementation? E.g., labor and materials for 
tactical installations; procuring in-kind donations for work. 

Answer 4: 
The selected consultant will be solely responsible for all labor and materials needed to perform the 
tactical demonstration, although it is anticipated that the client team will assist in project coordination 
items. The client team is anticipating supporting the demonstration with some materials and manpower 
resources. 

Question 5: 
What assistance will the client team supply in specific regards to implementation? 

Answer 5: 
The client team will assist in project coordination items such as public outreach – including but not 
limited to volunteer gathering and coordination, private property owner coordination, marketing and 
promoting scheduled events and other communication related tasks. 

Question 6: 
Under Submittal Items, the RFP states that the body of the proposal shall include 10 double sided pages. 
Will a cover page and table of contents count towards the 10 page maximum? 

Answer 6: 
No, the cover page and table of contents page will not count against the page limit total for proposal 
submissions. Aside from the cover page and table of contents page, the maximum page limit is 10 double 
sided pages. 

Question 7: 
Under Submittal Items, #7 states that a maximum of three projects should be presented.  Does this 
mean three projects for the entire team or up to a maximum of three projects for the prime and any 
subconsultants on the team? 

Answer 7: 
Only the lead consultant is required to provide (3) similar or related projects references although 
consultants are highly encouraged to include reference projects for subconsultant partners. 



 

Question 8: 
On Attachment C, we would typically supply fully loaded rates (complying with our GSA-or similar 
government scheduled rates), and not break out our overhead or profit. Would this be acceptable? 

Answer 8: 
The proposed project budget summary must include all consultant and subconsultant scheduled rates 
identifying the associated overhead cost and profit separately. 

Question 9: 
Will the selected consultant team be solely responsible for coordinating public meetings, or will 
CAP/ADID lead these efforts? 

Answer 9: 
The selected consultant shall take the lead in coordinating public outreach efforts and meetings and the 
client team will provide assistance for outreach coordination. 

Question 10: 
Are the station area assessment and concept plan boundaries the yellow hashed lines labeled “South 
CBD MARTA Station Area” boundaries found on Exhibit B map, or the blue solid line labeled 
“Downtown LCI Boundary”?  Conversely, is the stakeholder boundary in Task 3 Public Involvement to 
be drawn from the blue solid line labeled “Downtown LCI Boundary” found on the Exhibit B map? 

Answer 10: 
The station area boundaries are reflected in ‘Attachment B’ as dashed yellow lines surrounding each of 
the South CBD MARTA stations. The stakeholder group is generally identified as inhabitants or frequent 
visitors to the geographic bounds shown in ‘Attachment B’ as the Downtown LCI Boundary – the blue 
line. However, due to the regional significance of Downtown Atlanta and the central location of the 
South CBD MARTA stations, it is known that stakeholders exist beyond the Downtown LCI Boundary 
and those stakeholders are expected to be considered and will likely contribute in public engagement 
efforts. 

Question 11: 
Will tactical urbanism or demonstration projects be allowed to extend outside the demonstration study 
area boundaries of the stations? 

Answer 11: 
Yes, proposals that present concepts to extend the transit station area enhancement plan beyond the 
designated station boundaries will be considered provided the idea is accompanied by a realistic and 
reasonable explanation.  

Question 12: 
What should the expected life span be for the proposed demonstration projects?  



 

Answer 12: 
The length of the tactical demonstration will be subject to the discretion of the selected consultant and 
client team; however, it is anticipated that the demonstration would be most successful by lasting for at 
minimum one week – in order to be experienced by a variety of users, conditions and events. 

Question 13: 
If proposed demonstration projects are to be un-installed, who is responsible for the dismantling and 
disposal?  Will ADID's clean-team be able to assist? 

Answer 13: 
The selected contractor will be responsible for assisting the client team to take apart, break down and 
remove all temporary demonstration materials at the conclusion of the demonstration period. It is 
anticipated that ADID will be able to devote manpower for the setup and breakdown effort; however, it 
is encouraged that items requiring complex assembly or substantial coordination efforts are deemed of 
significant value to the demonstration period. 

 
 

 

 
 
 


